
Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and can be seen live at 
www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in 
our video archive at www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

FARGO PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, November 1, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
A: Approve Order of Agenda 
 
B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of October 4, 2022 
 
C: Public Hearing Items: 
 
1. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Valley View Tenth Addition (Minor Subdivision) 

a replat of Lot 5, Block 1, Valley View 8th Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North 
Dakota. (Located at 3680 Veterans Boulevard South) (EPIC Holdings II, LLC) (dk) 

 
2. Hearing on an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit for an Alternative Access Plan for 

a parking reduction on Lot 1, Block 1, Ulteig Addition. (Located at 3540 and 3550 38th Avenue 
South) (I-29 Investments LLC/Steve Schilke) (lm) 

 
3. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Calico Prairie Third Addition (Minor 

Subdivision) a replat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Calico Prairie 2nd Addition to the City of Fargo, 
Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 4404 26th Avenue South and 4441 Calico Drive South) 
(Western North Dakota Dev LLC/Goldmark Design and Development) (bg) 

 
D: Other Items: 
 
1. Review of Fargo/Moorhead Metropolitan Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 
 
 
 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


BOARD OF PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, October 4, 2022 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Planning Commissioners of the City of Fargo, 
North Dakota, was held in the Commission Chambers at City Hall at 3:00 p.m., 
Tuesday, October 4, 2022. 
 
The Planning Commissioners present or absent were as follows: 
 
Present: Rocky Schneider, John Gunkelman, Scott Stofferahn, Art Rosenberg, 

Dawn Morgan, Thomas Schmidt 
 
Absent: Jennifer Holtz, Brett Shewey, Maranda Tasa 
 
Chair Schneider called the meeting to order. 
 
Business Items: 
Item A: Approve Order of Agenda 
Member Stofferahn moved the Order of Agenda be approved as presented. Second by 
Member Morgan. All Members present voted aye and the motion was declared carried. 
 
Item B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 8, 2022 
Member Gunkelman moved the minutes of the September 8, 2022 Planning 
Commission meeting be approved. Second by Member Schmidt. All Members present 
voted aye and the motion was declared carried. 
 
Item C: Public Hearing Items: 
 
Item 1: Commerce on 12th Seventh Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Commerce on 12th Seventh 
Addition (Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lots 4 and 5, Block 1, Commerce on 12th 
Third Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 5570 
and 5590 13th Avenue North) (Fargo Commercial Properties, LLC/MBN 
Engineering): APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Donald Kress presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Member Stofferahn moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Subdivision Plat 
Commerce on 12th Seventh Addition, as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal 
complies with the 2007 Growth Plan, the Standards of Article 20-06, Section 20-
0907.B&C of the Land Development Code, and all other applicable requirements of the 
Land Development Code. Second by Member Morgan. On call of the roll Members 
Morgan, Schmidt, Stofferahn, Rosenberg, Gunkelman, and Schneider voted aye. 



Planning Commission 
October 4, 2022  Page No. 2 
 
Absent and not voting: Members Tasa, Holtz, and Shewey. The motion was declared 
carried. 
 
Item 2: Dakota Commerce Center North Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Dakota Commerce Center North 
Addition (Major Subdivision) a replat of a portion of the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 15, Township 140 North, Range 49 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, 
Cass County, North Dakota including a subdivision waiver. (Located at 4201 
County Road 81 North and 5100 37th Street North) (Holmquist Family LLP/Hyde 
Development): APPROVED 
Mr. Kress presented the staff report stating all approval criteria have been met and staff 
is recommending approval. He noted this project was previously approved by the 
Planning Commission on August 2, 2022, and the applicant has updated the application 
with a reconfigured plat. 
 
Applicant Representative Paul Hyde spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Discussion was held regarding onsite water storage, stormwater, and drain locations. 
 
Assistant City Engineer, Tom Knakmuhs, spoke on behalf of the Engineering 
department. 
 
Member Rosenberg moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Subdivision Plat 
Dakota Commerce Center North Addition, including a subdivision waiver for block 
length, as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the 2007 
Growth Plan, the Standard of Article 20-06, Sections 20-0907.C, and Section 20-
2907.D.3 (a-c) of the Land Development Code, and all other applicable requirements of 
the Land Development Code. Second by Member Stofferahn. On call of the roll 
Members Gunkelman, Stofferahn, Morgan, Schmidt, Rosenberg, and Schneider voted 
aye. Absent and not voting: Members Tasa, Shewey, and Holtz. The motion was 
declared carried. 
 
Item 3: Chas A. Roberts Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from SR-2, Single-
Dwelling Residential, LC, Limited Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay, 
and P/I, Public and Institutional to P/I, Public and Institutional and to repeal the 
existing C-O, Conditional Overlay, for parts of Block G, H, Tt, and I, Chas A. 
Roberts Addition and parts of vacated 6th Street South, parts of vacated 8th 
Avenue South, and parts of vacated 9th Avenue South. (Located at 700 and 701 
7th Street South; 555 and 653 8th Avenue South; 800 6th Street South): 
APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Maegin Elshaug presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval.  
 



Planning Commission 
October 4, 2022  Page No. 3 
 
Property Owner Dan Gilroy, 434 6th Avenue South, spoke regarding clarification of the 
map from the property owner letter he received. 
 
Discussion was held on the need to invest in Early Childhood education, and the 
location of this application. 
 
Member Rosenberg moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Zone Change from 
SR-2, Single-Dwelling Residential, LC, Limited Commercial with a C-O, Conditional 
Overlay, and P/I, Public and Institutional  to P/I, Public and Institutional and to repeal the 
existing C-O, Conditional Overlay, as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal 
complies with the Core Neighborhoods Plan, the Standards of Section 20-0906.F(1-4) 
of the Land Development Code, and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code. Second by Member Schmidt. On call of the roll Members Schmidt, 
Morgan, Stofferahn, Rosenberg, Gunkelman, and Schneider voted aye. Absent and not  
voting: Members Tasa, Holtz, and Shewey. The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 4: Hawthorne Elementary Addition 
4a. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Hawthorne Elementary 
Addition (Minor Subdivision) a replat of parts of Block H, Tt, and I of Chas A. 
Roberts Addition, and parts of vacated 6th Street South, parts of vacated 8th 
Avenue South, and parts of vacated 9th Avenue South, to the City of Fargo, Cass 
County, North Dakota. (700 7th Street South; 555 8th Avenue South; 800 6th 
Street South) (Fargo Public School District/KLJ Engineering): APPROVED 
 
4b. Hearing on an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow an 
Alternative Access Plan for a parking reduction on the proposed Hawthorne 
Elementary Addition and part of Block G, Chas A. Roberts Addition. (700 and 701 
7th Street South; 555 8th Avenue South; 800 6th Street South) (Fargo Public 
School District/KLJ Engineering): APPROVED 
Ms. Elshaug presented the staff report stating all approval criteria have been met and 
staff is recommending approval. 
 
Discussion was held on the parking study, a buffer between residential properties and 
the parking lot, and traffic in the area. 
 
Planning and Development Director Nicole Crutchfield stated that the City Traffic 
Engineer had reviewed the traffic study and the Planning Department follows his 
expertise in evaluating the study. 
 
Mr. Knakmuhs spoke on behalf of the Engineering department. 
 
Applicant Representative Jackie Gapp, Fargo Public Schools Business Manager, spoke 
on behalf of the application. 
 



Planning Commission 
October 4, 2022  Page No. 4 
 
Property Owner Dan Gilroy, 434 6th Avenue South, spoke on parking impacts, buffer 
space, and the location of the proposed addition. 
 
Member Gunkelman moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted the 
1) Conditional Use Permit to allow an Alternative Access Plan for a parking reduction on 
the proposed Lot 1, Block 1, Hawthorne Elementary Addition and part of Block G of  
Chas A. Roberts Addition, be approved as outlined within the staff report, as the 
proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D(1-6) of the Land Development Code and all 
other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code, with the following 
conditions:  
 
1. 171 parking spaces to be provided on site. 
 
2. Parking requirements may be met anywhere within the properties included in the 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 
3. Expansion of office and/or school use will require reevaluation of off-street 
parking requirements. 
 
4. The Conditional Use Permit will cease of any property included in the Conditional 
Use Permit is no longer owned by a governmental, civic, or public entity. 
 
And to accept the findings and recommendations of staff and recommend approval to 
the City Commission of the proposed 2) Subdivision Plat Hawthorne Elementary 
Addition, as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the GO2030 
Fargo Comprehensive Plan, the adopted Area Plan (Core Neighborhood Plan), the 
Standards of Section 20-0907.B&C, and of Article 20-06 of the Land Development 
Code, and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code. Second by 
Member Stofferahn. On call of the roll Members Stofferahn, Rosenberg, Schmidt, 
Morgan, Gunkelman, and Schneider voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Holtz, 
Shewey, and Tasa. The motion was declared carried. 
 
Ms. Crutchfield shared that the RFP for the Growth Plan is open until November 4, and 
thanked Board Members for participating in the joint informational meeting with the City 
Commissioners in September. 
 
The time at adjournment was 3:47 p.m. 



2

1
3

32ND

45TH

VETE
R

AN
S

§̈¦94

§̈¦29

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125
Miles

¯
1 -- Valley View Tenth Addition
2 -- Calico Prairie Third Addition
3 -- Ulteig Addition

Agenda Item Number

Agenda Items Map
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022



Page 1 of 4 

 

Agenda Item # 1 

 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Valley View 10th Addition Date: 10/26/2022 

Location: 3680 Veterans Boulevard Staff Contact: 
Donald Kress, current 
planning coordinator 

Legal Description: Lot 5, Block 1, Valley View Eighth Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: EPIC / Andrew Thill Engineer: KPH, Inc. 

Entitlements 
Requested: 

Minor Subdivision (replat of Lot 5, Block 1, Valley View Eighth Addition) 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: November 1st, 2022 

Existing  Proposed  

Land Use: Vacant  Land Use:  Commercial/ Residential Mixed Use 

Zoning: GC, General Commercial, with 
conditional overlay Ordinance No. 5030 and 
three conditional use permits, described below. 

 Zoning:  No change proposed 

Uses Allowed:  GC Allows colleges, 
community service, daycare centers of 
unlimited size, detention facilities, health care 
facilities, parks and open areas, religious 
institutions, safety services, adult entertainment 
centers, basic utilities, offices, off-premise 
advertising, commercial parking, outdoor 
recreation and entertainment, retail sales and 
service, self-storage, vehicle repair, limited 
vehicle service, and certain telecommunication 
facilities. 
 
Conditional Overlay No. 5030 prohibits 
certain land uses, as noted above, as well as 
the conditional uses of industrial service, 
manufacturing and production; warehouse and 
freight movement, wholesale sales, major 
entertainment event, and aviation/surface 
transportation.  
 
Three conditional use permits (CUP’s) apply to 
the property--see “Zoning, Conditional Overlay, 
and Conditional Use Permits” below. 

 Uses Allowed: No change proposed. 
 
Existing conditional overlay and all three CUP’s will 
carry through to this subdivision—see “Zoning, 
Conditional Overlay, and Conditional Use Permits” 
below. 

Maximum Density Allowed: Conditional Use 
Permit 2016-005 allows a residential density of 
24 dwelling units per acre 
Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: 85% 

 Maximum Density Allowed: No change 
Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: No change 

Proposal: 

 The applicant request one entitlement: 
1. A minor subdivision, to be known as Valley View 10th Addition, a replat of Lot 5, Block 1, Valley 

View Eighth Addition  
 

The subject property is located at 3680 Veterans Boulevard and encompasses approximately 3.74 acres. 



Page 2 of 4 

 

This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
Surrounding Zoning Districts and Land Uses:  

 North: GC: General Commercial; undeveloped and commercial and mixed use development;   

 East: SR-5: Single Dwelling Residential;  

 South: GC: commercial development; 

 West: City of West Fargo; Sheyenne High School and Liberty Middle School. 
NOTE:  The GC-zoned properties to the north and south are include in the same conditional overlay, 
ordinance no. 5030, as the subject property. The GC-zoned properties to the north are included in the 
same three conditional use permits as the subject property. 

Area Plans: 

The subject property is located within the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan as amended by the 
2013 Valley View Addition Growth Plan Amendment. This plan designates the subject property as 
“commercial or medium/high density residential.” This land use designation includes the current GC, 
General Commercial zoning designation. No zone change is proposed. 

 

             
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

Context 

Neighborhood: Brandt Crossing  
 
Schools: The subject property is located within the West Fargo School District and is served by 
Independence Elementary, Liberty Middle, and Sheyenne High schools 
 
Parks: Brandt Crossing Park (5009 33 Avenue South and 5050 33 Avenue South) is located 
approximately under a half mile north of the subject property.  Brandt Crossing Park provides basketball, 
dog park, playground, recreational trails, and shelter amenities.    
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: Eight-foot wide shared use paths are adjacent to the south and west sides of the 
subject property. These paths are a component of the metro area trail system.   
 
MATBUS Routes:  The subject property is not located along a MATBUS route.  The closest MATBUS 
stop is located approximately 0.25 mile to the south at 32nd Avenue South and Veterans Boulevard 
(Route 18). 
 
Staff Analysis: 

MINOR SUBDIVISION 
The subdivision plat divides an existing platted lot into two lots. Neither lot will have direct access from 
Veterans Boulevard.  Access to Lot 1 is by way of a shared access agreement with the lot to the north. 
Access to Lot 2 will be from 37th Avenue South.  
 
The plat depicts a 20-foot wide utility easement on Lot 2. This provides a sewer connection from 37th 
Avenue South to Lot 1.  
 
ZONING, CONDITIONAL OVERLAY, EXISITNG CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 
The subject property is zoned GC, General Commercial with a conditional overlay (C-O). 
 
The conditional overlay is ordinance no. 5030, approved April 11th, 2016.  The C-O provides design 
guidelines for the site and for future buildings and limits or prohibits certain land uses. All the provisions 
of this C-O will carry through to Valley View 10th Addition. 
 
There are three conditional use permits (CUP’s) that cover this property: 

 CUP 2016-005, approved March 1st, 2016, allows household living in the GC, General 
Commercial zone.  This CUP enables commercial/residential mixed use development.  

 

 CUP 2018-004, approved January 4th, 2018, provides alternative parking ratios for retail, fast 
food, restaurant, and household living land uses. 

 

 CUP 2021-011, approved September 9th, 2021, allows a shared parking arrangement between 
several lots in this subdivision. 

 
All the provisions of all three of these CUP’s will carry through to Valley View 10th Addition.  Staff 
determined that it was not necessary for the applicant to renew or update these CUP’s. 
   
Subdivision  
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria are met before a minor plat can be approved: 
1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend approval 

or denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area Plan, the 
standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development 
Code.  Section 20-0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor Subdivision Plat shall not 



Page 4 of 4 

 

be approved unless it is located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development and 
complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable 
requirements of the Land Development Code.  
The subject property is zoned GC, General Commercial with a C-O, conditional overlay.  CUP 2016-
005 allows household living in the GC zone.  These land uses are consistent with the 2003 Southwest 
Future Land Use Plan designation of “Commercial or Medium/High Density Residential.”   In 
accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to 
property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, Planning staff has received no 
comments or inquiries. The project has been reviewed by the city’s Planning, Engineering, Public 
Works, Inspections, and Fire Departments. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Section 20-0907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of   
City Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements to  
serve the subdivision.  

     While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it is 
important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are 
subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public 
infrastructure improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer by 
the square footage basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principles. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and recommend approval to 
the City Commission of the proposed plat of Valley View 10th Addition, as outlined in the staff report, on 
the basis that it satisfactorily complies with the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan, Standards of 
Article 20-06, and Section 20-0907.B. and C of the LDC and all other applicable requirements of the 
LDC.” 

Planning Commission Recommendation: November 1st, 2022 

 

Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 

 

 



OSGOOD PKWY S

40 AVE S

51 ST S

55
S

T
S

37 AVE S

36 AVE SVETER
AN

S BLVD

56
S

T
S

50

S
T

S

51 W
AY SFARMSTEAD CT S

38 AVE S

52
ST

S

53
 S

T 
S

ALY S

JUSTICE DR S

TYLER AVE S

35 AVE S

34 AVE S

V
A

LL
EY

V
IE

W
DR

S

CR
IM

SON LOO
P

S

CO
R

D
O

VA L O O
P

S

54
ST

S

58 ST S

50 ST
S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

Plat (minor) 

Valley View Tenth Addition 3680 Veterans Boulevard

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU City Limits
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1

37 AVE S

56 ST S

VETER
AN

S BLVD

37 AVE S

Subject Property

0 225 450112.5 Feet

0 370 740185 Feet

West Fargo Fargo

P, Public

R-3, 
Multiple Dwelling

R-1A, Single
Family Dwelling

R-1, One and
Two Family Dwelling

R-1SM, Mixed One 
and Two Family Dwelling

PUD, Planned 
Unit Development

West Fargo



OSGOOD PKWY S

40 AVE S

51 ST S

55
S

T
S

37 AVE S

36 AVE SVETER
AN

S BLVD

56
S

T
S

50

S
T

S

51 W
AY SFARMSTEAD CT S

38 AVE S

52
ST

S

53
 S

T 
S

ALY S

JUSTICE DR S

TYLER AVE S

35 AVE S

34 AVE S

V
A

LL
EY

V
IE

W
DR

S

CR
IM

SON LOO
P

S

CO
R

D
O

VA L O O
P

S

54
ST

S

58 ST S

50 ST
S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

Plat (minor) 

Valley View Tenth Addition 3680 Veterans Boulevard

37 AVE S

56 ST S

VETER
AN

S BLVD

37 AVE S

Subject Property

0 225 450112.5 Feet

0 370 740185 Feet

West Fargo Fargo

West Fargo

Legend

City Limits



LOT 1

BLOCK  1

LOT 2

S85°41'49"W  250.00

N
04°23'38"W

  597.13

N85°36'22"E  293.08

S19°40'10"E  122.25

S85°41'49"W
50.29

L=
50

1.
91

R
=1

81
1.

00
Δ

=1
5°

52
'4

5"

C
H

=5
00

.3
1

C
H

B
=S

01
°3

1'
35

"E
L1

SHEET 1 OF 1

00 50 100

VALLEY VIEW TENTH ADDITION



Page 1 of 4 
 

Agenda Item # 2 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Ulteig Addition Date: 10/25/2022 
Location: 3550 and 3540 38th Ave S Staff Contact: Luke Morman, Planner 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, Ulteig Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: Mark Weston (I-29 Investments, 
LLC)/Steve Schilke (CMTA) Engineer: CMTA 

Entitlements Requested: Conditional Use Permit for an alternative access plan for parking reduction on Lot 1, 
Block 1, Ulteig Addition 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: November 1, 2022 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Office, Religious Institution, Retail Sales 
and Service, and Self-Storage. 

 Land Use: Medical Office, Office, Religious Institution, 
Retail Sales and Service, and Self-Storage 

Zoning: GC, General Commercial  Zoning: No change 
Uses Allowed: Allows colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, detention 
facilities, health care facilities, parks and open 
areas, religious institutions, safety services, adult 
entertainment centers, basic utilities, offices, off-
premise advertising, commercial parking, outdoor 
recreation and entertainment, retail sales and 
service, self-storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle 
service, and certain telecommunication facilities. 

 Uses Allowed: No change 

Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: 85% building 
coverage 

 Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: No change 

 
Proposal: 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use 
permit for an alternative access plan to allow a 
parking reduction on Lot 1, Block 1, Ulteig 
Addition located at 3550 (west building) and 
3540 (east building) 38th Avenue South. The 
applicant is proposing to renovate 4,207 square 
feet of the 3540 38 Avenue South building, 
which was previously approved office space and 
is proposed to be medical office use. 
 
In 2020, the 3550 38th Avenue South building 
(west) was approved and constructed, and in 
2021, the 3540 building (east) was approved 
and constructed, both for office uses.  Later, on 
September 9th, 2021, a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) was approved for an alternative access 
plan for parking reduction to allow for a religious 
institution use within the 3540 building, reducing 
the requirements from 114 to 74 spaces.  The 
site plan on the right is for reference only to 
show the locations and layout of the buildings 
and parking on the site.  It was taken from the 
approved plans for 3550 38th Avenue South. 

3540 
Building 

3550 
Building 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
In August 2022, the City received a building permit application for a renovation of 4,207 square feet of the 3540 
building to be used as a medical office, increasing the parking requirements for the site.  Additionally during this 
review, Planning staff found that there was an increase in the number of seats for the church and additional Retail 
Sales & Service uses currently occupying the buildings, different from what was previously approved. 
 
The applicant is requesting a parking reduction to provide a total of 75 parking spaces on-site (74 exterior and 1 
interior garage space).  A parking study provided by CMTA explains the underutilized parking lot as it sits today, 
references the Parking Generation Manual, 5th Edition by the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) and the 2018 
Fargo/West Fargo Parking & Access Study prepared by Metro COG, and describes how the national standards 
provided in these documents are less restrictive than the current Land Development Code parking requirements. 
 
Taking the ratios provided by the applicant, staff finds these as a justified alternative to match national standards as 
it references the most recent Parking Generation Manual, 5th Edition by the ITE.  The land uses that were not 
referenced in the study will remain the same as what is provided in the Land Development Code (LDC).  Below is a 
study of the parking reduction proposed for the whole site: 
 

Use Square Footage LDC Parking Requirements 
(Section 20-0701) 

Proposed with CUP Alternative 
Access Plan for Parking Reduction 

Medical Office 4,207 sf 1 space per 200 sf = 21 spaces 1 space per 310 sf = 14 spaces 
Office 8,480 sf 1 space per 300 sf = 29 spaces 1 space per 420 sf = 20 spaces 

Religious Institution 150 seats 0.4 spaces per seat = 60 spaces 0.22 spaces per seat = 33 spaces 
Retail 2,356 sf 1 space per 250 sf =  10 spaces 1 space per 250 sf =  10 spaces 

Storage 725 sf 1 space per 2500 sf = 1 space 1 space per 2500 sf = 1 space 
TOTAL 121 spaces 78 spaces 

 
Based on these calculations, the existing 75 parking spaces on-site do not meet the requirements listed even with 
the alternate ratios provided.  However, the applicant has stated that 75 parking spaces will be sufficient due to the 
fact that the religious institution and the other uses will not operate at the same time. The medical office, office, 
retail sales and service, and storage uses will operate Monday through Friday between 8am and 5pm while the 
church’s lease does not allow large gatherings to occur between 8am and 5pm Monday through Friday.  The City of 
Fargo’s Traffic Engineer determined the reduction was sufficient based on the parking study findings, specifically 
the differing hours of operation between the religious institution and the other uses.  Total demand for this site 
shows 78 parking spaces, but based on the varying times of the uses shown, the maximum demand at any given 
time is less than the 75 spaces provided on-site.  The proposed ratios and conditions provided in this report will 
allow flexibility for the applicant for future changes in tenants, but will also add limits to the site based on the hours 
of operation. 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

• North: Across 38th Ave S is retail sales and service (Mills Fleet Farm) zoned GC, General Commercial; 
• East: Multi-dwelling residential zoned GC, General Commercial with a CUP to allow household living 

residential land use within the GC, General Commercial zone; 
• South: Across Rose Coulee/county drain #27 is vacant land and single-family houses zoned AG, 

Agricultural and SR-4, Single-Dwelling Residential. 
• West: Across I-29 is warehouse and office zoned LI, Limited Industrial. 

 
Area Plans: 
The subject property is not within a designated growth plan. 
 
Context: 
Neighborhood: The subject property is located within the Stonebridge Neighborhood 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Schools: The subject property is located within the boundary of the Fargo School District, more specifically within 
Centennial Elementary, Discovery Middle School, and Davies High School. 
 
Parks: Located within a quarter-mile of the subject property is Stonebridge Park #2 (3700 32nd St S) providing 
amenities of sports fields, playground equipment and recreational trails. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: A shared use facility is located along 38th Ave S, directly abutting the subject property to the 
north, and connects to the metro area trail system. 
 
Bus Route: There are no bus routes within a half mile of the subject property. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria (Section 20-0909.D) 
The following is a list of criteria that must be determined satisfied in order for a Conditional Use Permit to be 
approved: 
 

1. Does the proposed conditional use comply with all applicable provisions of the LDC and will it 
conform to the general intent and purpose of this LDC?  
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. Promoting infill development and exploring reductions in 
minimum parking standards are both key initiatives meant to promote the Plan’s guiding principles. Staff 
finds this proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the GO2030 Comprehensive Plan, and other 
adopted policies of the City. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Will the proposed conditional use at the specified location contribute to and promote the welfare or 
convenience of the public?  
Staff finds that this proposed conditional use permit to allow for a parking reduction at this location will not 
affect the welfare of the public.  The CUP for parking reduction has been reviewed by the Engineering 
Department who supports the proposed parking reduction as it aligns with the ITE parking guidance for the 
proposed uses, which have opposing peak demand times. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

3. Will the proposed conditional use cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 
neighborhood in which it is to be located? 
Staff has no data to suggest the proposed use would cause substantial injury to the value of other property 
in the neighborhood. In accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed use were 
sent out to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has received and 
responded to one inquiry about the project and no letters of opposition for this application. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

4. Is the location and size of the conditional use, the nature and intensity of the operation conducted 
in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it such that 
the conditional use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent the 
development and use of the neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations?  In considering this criteria, location, nature, and height of buildings, structures, walls, 
and fences on the site are to be considered, as well as the nature and extent of proposed 
landscaping and buffering on the site. 
The proposed alternative access plan for parking reduction will not dominate the immediate neighborhood 
or prevent any other sites from being used in the manner allowed by zoning district regulations. Staff has 
concern about the possibility of overlap with the hours of operation for each tenant and the religious 
institution operations.  Staff suggests a condition that limits the hours of operation of the religious institution 
that coincides with the owner’s statements about the hours of operation in the tenant’s lease, and an 
additional condition that prohibits the expansion of the religious institution (without an amendment to this 
CUP) to protect the parking needs of the rest of the subject property. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

5. Are adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services provided or will they 
be at the time of development?  
The property has access to all necessary utilities and services. Staff is not aware of any deficiencies 
regarding drainage or utilities that would limit the ability of the applicant to utilize the property as proposed. 
Based on this information, staff finds that the adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities 
and services are in place. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

6. Have adequate access roads or entrances and exit drives been provided and are they designed to 
prevent traffic hazards and to minimize traffic congestion in public streets?  
The subject property has access to 38th Avenue South, which is a fully constructed collector roadway.  The 
existing driveway has been previously approved when the existing buildings were originally permitted and 
no additional access roads or entrance and exit drives are proposed 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Recommended Conditions: 
1. Medical office uses require 1 parking stall per 310 square feet. 
2. Office-other uses require 1 parking stall per 420 square feet. 
3. Religious institution uses require 0.22 parking spaces per seat. 
4. Religious institution operates primarily outside of regular business hours (8am-5pm, Monday through 

Friday). 
5. Any expansion of the religious institution use shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit 

with review and approval by the Planning Commission. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby move to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit to allow an alternative access plan as the proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D (1-6) 
and all other requirements of the LDC, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Medical office uses require 1 parking stall per 310 square feet. 
2. Office-other uses require 1 parking stall per 420 square feet. 
3. Religious institution uses require 0.22 parking spaces per seat. 
4. Religious institution operates primarily outside of regular business hours (8am-5pm, Monday through 

Friday). 
5. Any expansion of the religious institution use shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit 

with review and approval by the Planning Commission. 

Planning Commission Recommendation: November 1, 2022 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
 

 



I29

35 1/2 COURT AVE S

36 AVE S

36 ST S

38 ST S

34
 S

T 
S

40 AVE S

32
S

T
S

40
 S

T 
S

35 1/2 AVE S35 AVE S

41S
T

S

33 ST S

38
1 / 2 AVE S

39
 S

T 
S

43 AVE S

42 AVE S41 AVE S

37 1/2 AVE S

38 AVE S

37 AVE S

39 AVE S 39 AV
ES

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

CUP for Parking Reduction

Ulteig Addition 3540 and 3550 38th Avenue South

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU City Limits
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1

36 ST S

I29

38 AVE S

Subject Property

0 150 30075 Feet

0 420 840210 Feet



I29

35 1/2 COURT AVE S

36 AVE S

36 ST S

38 ST S

34
 S

T 
S

40 AVE S

32
S

T
S

40
 S

T 
S

35 1/2 AVE S35 AVE S

41S
T

S

33 ST S

38
1 / 2 AVE S

39
 S

T 
S

43 AVE S

42 AVE S41 AVE S

37 1/2 AVE S

38 AVE S

37 AVE S

39 AVE S 39 AV
ES

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

CUP for Parking Reduction

Ulteig Addition 3540 and 3550 38th Avenue South

36 ST S

I29

38 AVE S

Subject Property

0 150 30075 Feet

0 420 840210 Feet



Page 1 of 3 
 

Agenda Item # 3 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Calico Prairie 3rd Addition Date: 
Update: 

10/27/2022 
 

Location: 4404 26th Ave South Staff 
Contact: 

Brad Garcia, 
Planner 

Legal Description: All of lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Calico Prairie 2nd Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass 
County, North Dakota 

Owner(s)/Applicant: Western North Dakota Development LLC 
/ Nate Vollmuth Engineer: Bolton & Menk 

Entitlements Requested: Minor Subdivision (All of lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Calico Prairie 2nd Addition, to 
the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota) 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing:  November 1st, 2022 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Undeveloped  Land Use:  Commercial 
Zoning: LC, Limited Commercial   Zoning: No change proposed 
Uses Allowed:  
Colleges, community service, daycare centers of 
unlimited size, health care facilities, parks and 
open space, religious institutions, safety services, 
basic utilities, offices, off premise advertising 
signs, commercial parking, retail sales and 
service, self-service storage, vehicle repair, 
limited vehicle service 

 Uses Allowed: No change proposed 
 

Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed:  55%  Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: No change 
proposed 
 

Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a minor subdivision to accommodate future business development of 
the subject property. Currently the property does not have any development. 4441 26th Ave S is currently 
being used as a retention pond for storm runoff from properties located within the Calico Prairie 2nd 
Addition. The proposed minor subdivision, entitled Calico Prairie 3rd Addition, would replat the subject 
properties into two lots. Both lots of the proposed plat are intended for commercial development. The 
proposed plat contains approximately 2.36 acres. 
 
A private shared access easement area exists on the west side to allow access to properties on the west 
side of the subject property. Additionally a stormwater retention area, located on lot 2 within the proposed 
plat, provides stormwater retention to all properties located within Calico Prairie 2nd Addition. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

• North: GC; General Commercial with a Planned Unit Overlay (PUD), allowing residential as an 
allowed use. 

• East: MR-2, Multi-Family Residential 
• South: MR-3, Multi-Family Residential 
• West: LC; Retail Sales and Service 

 
All or portions of the Residential Protection Standards, section 20-0704 of the Land Development Code, will 
be applicable to both properties as proposed due to the proximity of residentially-zoned properties to the 
east and south. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Area Plans: 
The subject property is located within 
an area identified as the Southwest 
Area Plan as contained within the 
Growth Plan for the Urban Fringe and 
Extraterritorial Area of the City of 
Fargo. In January of 2003, this plan 
was amended to illustrate commercial 
land-uses along the east side of 45th 
Street South (Figure 1).  
In accordance to the 2001 Growth 
Plan, as amended in 2003, the 
subject property is identified as being 
suitable for Commercial land-uses. 
No change from the LC zoning is 
proposed. 
 
 
Context: 
 
Neighborhood: The subject properties are located in the Anderson Park neighborhood. 
 
Schools: The subject properties are located within the West Fargo School District and are served by 
Eastwood  
Elementary, Liberty Middle School and Sheyenne High schools. 
 
Parks: The subject properties are located within half a mile of Anderson Park (4200 23rd Avenue South), 
which offer amenities such baseball and softball fields (Tharaldson Baseball Complex), concessions, picnic 
tables, young child playground, restrooms and a shelter. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: Shared Use Paths exist along the east side of 45th Avenue South and on the north 
side of 30th Avenue South and are part of the Metro Bikeways System. 
 
Transit: Two public transportation bus routes service the subject properties within a half mile distance. 
Route 24 serves the area going westbound along 23rd Ave S providing service to West Acres, Sanford 
Medical Center, Cashwise Foods, Bluestem Dr, Costco, 19th Ave & Burlington Dr.  
Route 14 serves the area north and south along 42nd St S, providing service to GTC, Prairie Psych / Island 
Park, Essentia / Sanford, Kmart, Family Fare, Essentia Hospital, Flying J, Rasmussen College, West 
Acres, YMCA, Love's, Hornbacher's, Courthouse 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Minor Subdivision 
 
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria are met before a minor plat can be approved: 
 

1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend 
approval or denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area 
Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  Section 20-0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor 
Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it is located in a zoning district that allows the 

Figure 1. 2003 Area Plan Amendment 



Page 3 of 3 
 

proposed development and complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-
06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code. 

 
The current zoning is LC, Limited Commercial and no zoning change is proposed.  In accordance 
with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property 
owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, Planning staff has received one inquiry 
about future development in the subject properties. The project has been reviewed by the city’s 
Planning, Engineering, Public Works, Inspections, and Fire Departments. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
 

2. Section 20-0907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of 
City Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements 
to serve the subdivision.  

 
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it is 
important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) 
are subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public 
infrastructure improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer 
by the square footage basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principles. (Criteria 
Satisfied) 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend approval 
to the City Commission of the proposed plat of Calico Prairie 3rd Addition on the basis that it satisfactorily 
complies with the adopted Area Plan, the Standards of Article 20-06, and Section 20-0907.B. and 
C of the LDC and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.” 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation:  November 1st, 2022 
 
Attachments: 

 
1. Location Map 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Preliminary Plat  

 
 
 



C
ALIC

O
 D

R
 S

BRANDT DR S

26 AVE S

AMBER VALLEY PKWY S

45 ST S

30 AVE S

RUSSET AVE S

28 AVE S

U
M

BER
 C

T S

47
S

T
S

24 AVE S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

Plat (minor) 

Calico Prairie Third Addition 4404 26th Street South and 4441 Calico Drive South

CALICO DR S

Subject Property

0 200 400100 Feet

0 200 400100 Feet



C
ALIC

O
 D

R
 S

BRANDT DR S

26 AVE S

AMBER VALLEY PKWY S

45 ST S

30 AVE S

RUSSET AVE S

28 AVE S

U
M

BER
 C

T S

47
S

T
S

24 AVE S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

November 1, 2022

Plat (minor) 

Calico Prairie Third Addition 4404 26th Street South and 4441 Calico Drive South

Legend
SR-2SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU City Limits
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1

CALICO DR S

Subject Property

0 200 400100 Feet

0 200 400100 Feet





 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100| f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

 
 

 

To: Fargo Planning Commission 

From: Dan Farnsworth, Metro COG 

Date: October 26, 2022 

Re: Fargo-Moorhead Metro Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan 

  

 

In June of 2021 Metro COG began the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Bicycle & 

Pedestrian Plan Update.  Every five years Metro COG, in cooperation with the local 

jurisdictions, updates the Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan.  

 

This plan was guided by a 23-member study review committee with representation from 

local jurisdictions, parks departments, local health agencies, citizens, and more.  Public 

engagement was also held twice throughout Plan’s development. 

 

Attached is the final draft of the Plan.  It is also important to note that additional 

information can be found in the Plan’s appendices, which can be found on Metro 

COG’s website at the following link:  https://www.fmmetrocog.org/projects-

rfps/BikePedPlan21/project-materials.  This link also displays a higher resolution version of 

the Plan along with landscape-oriented maps. 

 

At the November 1st Fargo Planning Commission meeting, Metro COG will provide a 

presentation overviewing the study.  Metro COG is requesting a recommendation of 

the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan Update to the Fargo City 

Commission. 

 

 

 
 

https://www.fmmetrocog.org/projects-rfps/BikePedPlan21/project-materials
https://www.fmmetrocog.org/projects-rfps/BikePedPlan21/project-materials

























































	Items A-B Combined
	11-01-2022 PC Agenda
	PC Minutes 10-04-2022
	PC Agenda Items Map November 2022

	11-01-2022 Valley View 10th Addition
	11-01-2022 Valley View 10th Addition
	Valley View Tenth Addition (zoning UPDATED-Includes West Fargo)
	Valley View Tenth Addition (aerial UPDATED-Includes West Fargo)
	Valley View 10th Addition plat  11 X 17

	11-01-2022 Ulteig Addition (CUP)
	11-01-2022 Calico Prairie 3rd Addition (minor subdivision)
	Calico Prairie Third Addition (zoning) REVISED w 2nd Address
	Calico Prairie Third Addition (aerial) REVISED w 2nd Address

	Item D.1 MetroCOG Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan
	Memo_FM Metro Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan_Fargo Planning Commission
	Fargo-Moorhead Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan FINAL_scanned6MB




